

Amendment to SB-FRS 19 *Employee Benefits*

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

This document is issued as a reference. The amendments in this document have been incorporated into SB-FRS 19.

Contents

INTRODUCTION

AMENDMENT TO SB-FRS 19 *Employee Benefits*

Introduction to SB-FRS 19

Multi-employer Plans

Defined Benefit Plans that Share Risks between Various Entities under Common Control

Recognition of the Components of the Defined Benefit Cost in Profit or Loss

Actuarial Gains and Losses

Disclosure

Effective Date

Other Amendments to the Standard

Amendments to Appendix A: Illustrative Example

Amendments to Appendix B: Illustrative Disclosures

Additional Appendix F: Amendments to other Standards

Introduction

- IN1. This amendment to SB-FRS 19 *Employee Benefits* introduces an additional recognition option for actuarial gains and losses arising in post-employment defined benefit plans. Actuarial gains and losses are defined in SB-FRS 19 as experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. They include changes in the fair value of plan assets other than those explained by the expected return. Before this amendment, SB-FRS 19 required actuarial gains and losses to be recognised in profit or loss either in the period in which they occur, or on a deferred basis.
- IN2. There were reservations about aspects of SB-FRS 19, including concerns about deferred recognition of actuarial gains and losses. It was believed that deferred recognition is inconsistent with the *Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements* because it results in amounts presented in the balance sheet that do not meet the definition of a liability or an asset. A major project on accounting for post-employment benefits would be undertaken.
- IN3. It was noted that the UK standard on post-employment benefits, (UK) SB-FRS 17 *Retirement Benefits*, requires recognition of all actuarial gains and losses as they occur, outside profit or loss in a statement of total recognised gains and losses. This was not necessarily regarded as an ideal solution, but it was noted that SB-FRS 17 produces transparent information about defined benefit plans in the financial statements. It was believed that, pending (a) a comprehensive reconsideration of the accounting for post-employment benefits and (b) the development of a new format for the income statement, an option similar to the approach in (UK) SB-FRS 17 should be available as an alternative to deferred recognition or immediate recognition in profit or loss.
- IN4. The other features of the amendment are:
- (a) clarification that a contractual agreement between a multi-employer plan and participating employers that determines how a surplus is to be distributed or a deficit funded will give rise to an asset or liability.
 - (b) accounting requirements for group defined benefit plans in the separate or individual financial statements of entities within a group.
 - (c) additional disclosures that:
 - (i) provide information about trends in the assets and liabilities in a defined benefit plan and the assumptions underlying the components of the defined benefit cost; and
 - (ii) bring the disclosures in SB-FRS 19 closer to those required by the US standard SFAS 132 *Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits*, which was revised in December 2003.

Amendment to SB-FRS 19 *Employee Benefits*

This document sets out amendments to SB-FRS 19 *Employee Benefits* (SB-FRS 19) as amended up to September 2004.

These amendments finalise proposals that were contained in an Exposure Draft of Proposed Amendments to SB-FRS 19 *Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures* published in May 2004.

For ease of reference, amended paragraphs are shown with new text underlined and deleted text struck through. New paragraphs added are not underlined.

Multi-employer Plans

Paragraph 32A and the illustrative example are added and paragraph 35 is moved and renumbered 32B, as follows.

- 32A. There may be a contractual agreement between the multi-employer plan and its participants that determines how the surplus in the plan will be distributed to the participants (or the deficit funded). A participant in a multi-employer plan with such an agreement that accounts for the plan as a defined contribution plan in accordance with paragraph 30 shall recognise the asset or liability that arises from the contractual agreement and the resulting income or expense in profit or loss.

Example illustrating paragraph 32A

An entity participates in a multi-employer defined benefit plan that does not prepare plan valuations on an SB-FRS 19 basis. It therefore accounts for the plan as if it were a defined contribution plan. A non-SB-FRS 19 funding valuation shows a deficit of 100 million in the plan. The plan has agreed under contract a schedule of contributions with the participating employers in the plan that will eliminate the deficit over the next five years. The entity's total contributions under the contract are 8 million.

The entity recognises a liability for the contributions adjusted for the time value of money and an equal expense in profit or loss.

- 32B. SB-FRS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets* requires an entity to recognise, or disclose information about, certain contingent liabilities. In the context of a multi-employer plan, a contingent liability may arise from, for example:
- (a) actuarial losses relating to other participating entities because each entity that participates in a multi-employer plan shares in the actuarial risks of every other participating entity; or
 - (b) any responsibility under the terms of a plan to finance any shortfall in the plan if other entities cease to participate.

35. [Deleted]

Defined Benefit Plans that Share Risks between Various Entities under Common Control

Paragraph 34 is amended and paragraphs 34A and 34B are added, as follows.

34. Defined benefit plans that ~~pool the assets contributed by~~ share risks between various entities under common control, for example, a parent and its subsidiaries, are not multi-employer plans. ~~Therefore, an entity treats all such plans as defined benefit plans.~~
- 34A. An entity participating in such a plan shall obtain information about the plan as a whole measured in accordance with SB-FRS 19 on the basis of assumptions that apply to the plan as a whole. If there is a contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost for the plan as a whole measured in accordance with SB-FRS 19 to individual group entities, the entity shall, in its separate or individual financial statements, recognise the net defined benefit cost so charged. If there is no such agreement or policy, the net defined benefit cost shall be recognised in the separate or individual financial statements of the group entity that is legally the sponsoring employer for the plan. The other group entities shall, in their separate or individual financial statements, recognise a cost equal to their contribution payable for the period.
- 34B. Participation in such a plan is a related party transaction for each individual group entity. An entity shall therefore, in its separate or individual financial statements, make the following disclosures:
- (a) the contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost or the fact that there is no such policy;
 - (b) the policy for determining the contribution to be paid by the entity;
 - (c) if the entity accounts for an allocation of the net defined benefit cost in accordance with paragraph 34A, all the information about the plan as a whole in accordance with paragraphs 120-121;
 - (d) if the entity accounts for the contribution payable for the period in accordance with paragraph 34A, the information about the plan as a whole required in accordance with paragraphs 120A(b)-(e), (j), (n), (o), (q) and 121. The other disclosures required by paragraph 120A do not apply.

Recognition of the Components of the Defined Benefit Cost in Profit or Loss

The heading above paragraph 61 is amended and paragraph 61 is amended as follows.

Income Statement Profit or Loss

61. ***An entity shall recognise the net total of the following amounts ~~as expense or (subject to the limit in paragraph 58(b)) income in profit or loss, except to the extent that another Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:~~***
- (a) ***current service cost (see paragraphs 63-91);***
 - (b) ***interest cost (see paragraph 82);***
 - (c) ***the expected return on any plan assets (see paragraphs 105-107) and on any reimbursement rights (see paragraph 104A);***
 - (d) ***actuarial gains and losses, ~~to the extent that they are recognised under as required in accordance with the entity's accounting policy (see paragraphs 92 and 93 -93D);~~***
 - (e) ***past service cost, ~~to the extent that paragraph 96 requires an entity to recognise it (see paragraph 96); and~~***
 - (f) ***the effect of any curtailments or settlements (see paragraphs 109 and 110); and***

- (g) the effect of the limit in paragraph 58(b), unless it is recognised outside profit or loss in accordance with paragraph 93C.**

Actuarial Gains and Losses

Paragraphs 92, 93 and 95 are amended and paragraphs 93A-93D are added, as follows.

- 92. In measuring its defined benefit liability ~~under~~ in accordance with paragraph 54, an entity shall, subject to paragraph 58A, recognise a portion (as specified in paragraph 93) of its actuarial gains and losses as income or expense if the net cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded the greater of:**
- (a) 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at that date (before deducting plan assets); and**
- (b) 10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that date.**
- These limits shall be calculated and applied separately for each defined benefit plan.**
- 93. The portion of actuarial gains and losses to be recognised for each defined benefit plan is the excess determined ~~under~~ in accordance with paragraph 92, divided by the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in that plan. However, an entity may adopt any systematic method that results in faster recognition of actuarial gains and losses, provided that the same basis is applied to both gains and losses and the basis is applied consistently from period to period. An entity may apply such systematic methods to actuarial gains and losses even if they ~~fall~~ are within the limits specified in paragraph 92.**
- 93A. If, as permitted by paragraph 93, an entity adopts a policy of recognising actuarial gains and losses in the period in which they occur, it may recognise them outside profit or loss, in accordance with paragraphs 93B-93D, providing it does so for:**
- (a) all of its defined benefit plans; and**
- (b) all of its actuarial gains and losses.**
- 93B. Actuarial gains and losses recognised outside profit or loss as permitted by paragraph 93A shall be presented in a statement of changes in equity titled 'statement of recognised income and expense' that comprises only the items specified in paragraph 96 of SB-FRS 1 (as revised in 2004). The entity shall not present the actuarial gains and losses in a statement of changes in equity in the columnar format referred to in paragraph 101 of SB-FRS 1 or any other format that includes the items specified in paragraph 97 of SB-FRS 1.**
- 93C. An entity that recognises actuarial gains and losses in accordance with paragraph 93A shall also recognise any adjustments arising from the limit in paragraph 58(b) outside profit or loss in the statement of recognised income and expense.**
- 93D. Actuarial gains and losses and adjustments arising from the limit in paragraph 58(b) that have been recognised directly in the statement of recognised income and expense shall be recognised immediately in retained earnings. They shall not be recognised in profit or loss in a subsequent period.**
- 95. In the long term, actuarial gains and losses may offset one another. Therefore, estimates of post-employment benefit obligations ~~are best~~ may be viewed as a range (or 'corridor') around the best estimate. An entity is permitted, but not required, to recognise actuarial gains and losses that fall within that range. ...**

Disclosure

A new paragraph 120 is inserted, and paragraph 120 is renumbered 120A and, with paragraph 121, amended as follows.

120. An entity shall disclose information that enables users of financial statements to evaluate the nature of its defined benefit plans and the financial effects of changes in those plans during the period.

120A. An entity shall disclose the following information about defined benefit plans:

- (a) the entity's accounting policy for recognising actuarial gains and losses;**
- (b) a general description of the type of plan;**
- (c) a reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation showing separately, if applicable, the effects during the period attributable to each of the following:**
 - (i) current service cost;**
 - (ii) interest cost;**
 - (iii) contributions by plan participants;**
 - (iv) actuarial gains and losses;**
 - (v) foreign currency exchange rate changes on plans measured in a currency different from the entity's presentation currency;**
 - (vi) benefits paid;**
 - (vii) past service cost;**
 - (viii) business combinations;**
 - (ix) curtailments; and**
 - (x) settlements;**
- (d) an analysis of the defined benefit obligation into amounts arising from plans that are wholly unfunded and amounts arising from plans that are wholly or partly funded;**
- (e) a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets and of the opening and closing balances of any reimbursement right recognised as an asset in accordance with paragraph 104A showing separately, if applicable, the effects during the period attributable to each of the following:**
 - (i) expected return on plan assets;**
 - (ii) actuarial gains and losses;**
 - (iii) foreign currency exchange rate changes on plans measured in a currency different from the entity's presentation currency;**
 - (iv) contributions by the employer;**

(v) contributions by plan participants;

(vi) benefits paid;

(vii) business combinations; and

(viii) settlements;

(ef) a reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation in (c) and the fair value of the plan assets in (e) to the assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, showing at least:

~~(i) the present value at the balance sheet date of defined benefit obligations that are wholly unfunded;~~

~~(ii) the present value (before deducting the fair value of plan assets) at the balance sheet date of defined benefit obligations that are wholly or partly funded;~~

~~(iii) the fair value of any plan assets at the balance sheet date;~~

~~(iv) the net actuarial gains or losses not recognised in the balance sheet (see paragraph 92);~~

~~(iv) the past service cost not yet recognised in the balance sheet (see paragraph 96);~~

~~(iiiv) any amount not recognised as an asset, because of the limit in paragraph 58(b);~~

~~(ivvii) the fair value at the balance sheet date of any reimbursement right recognised as an asset under in accordance with paragraph 104A (with a brief description of the link between the reimbursement right and the related obligation); and~~

~~(vviii) the other amounts recognised in the balance sheet;~~

~~(d) the amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for:~~

~~(i) each category of the reporting entity's own financial instruments; and~~

~~(ii) any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the reporting entity;~~

~~(e) a reconciliation showing the movements during the period in the net liability (or asset) recognised in the balance sheet;~~

(gf) the total expense recognised in the income statement profit or loss for each of the following, and the line item(s) of the income statement in which they are included:

(i) current service cost;

(ii) interest cost;

(iii) expected return on plan assets;

- (iv) ***expected return on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset under in accordance with paragraph 104A***;
 - (v) ***actuarial gains and losses***;
 - (vi) ***past service cost; and***
 - (vii) ***the effect of any curtailment or settlement; and***
 - (viii) the effect of the limit in paragraph 58(b).***
- (h) the total amount recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense for each of the following:***
- (i) actuarial gains and losses; and***
 - (ii) the effect of the limit in paragraph 58(b):***
- (i) for entities that recognise actuarial gains and losses in the statement of recognised income and expense in accordance with paragraph 93A, the cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense;***
- (j) for each major category of plan assets, which shall include, but is not limited to, equity instruments, debt instruments, property, and all other assets, the percentage or amount that each major category constitutes of the fair value of the total plan assets;***
- (k) the amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for:***
- (i) each category of the entity's own financial instruments; and***
 - (ii) any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the entity;***
- (l) a narrative description of the basis used to determine the overall expected rate of return on assets, including the effect of the major categories of plan assets;***
- (gm) the actual return on plan assets, as well as the actual return on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset under in accordance with paragraph 104A; and***
- (hn) the principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date, including, where applicable:***
- (i) the discount rates;***
 - (ii) the expected rates of return on any plan assets for the periods presented in the financial statements;***
 - (iii) the expected rates of return for the periods presented in the financial statements on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset under in accordance with paragraph 104A***;
 - (iv) the expected rates of salary increases (and of changes in an index or other variable specified in the formal or constructive terms of a plan as the basis for future benefit increases);***
 - (v) medical cost trend rates; and***

(vi) any other material actuarial assumptions used.

An entity shall disclose each actuarial assumption in absolute terms (for example, as an absolute percentage) and not just as a margin between different percentages or other variables;

(o) the effect of an increase of one percentage point and the effect of a decrease of one percentage point in the assumed medical cost trend rates on:

(i) the aggregate of the current service cost and interest cost components of net periodic post-employment medical costs; and

(ii) the accumulated post-employment benefit obligation for medical costs.

For the purposes of this disclosure, all other assumptions shall be held constant. For plans operating in a high inflation environment, the disclosure shall be the effect of a percentage increase or decrease in the assumed medical cost trend rate of a significance similar to one percentage point in a low inflation environment;

(p) the amounts for the current annual period and previous four annual periods of:

(i) the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the fair value of the plan assets and the surplus or deficit in the plan; and

(ii) the experience adjustments arising on:

(A) the plan liabilities expressed either as (1) an amount or (2) a percentage of the plan liabilities at the balance sheet date; and

(B) the plan assets expressed either as (1) an amount or (2) a percentage of the plan assets at the balance sheet date;

(q) the employer's best estimate, as soon as it can reasonably be determined, of contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the annual period beginning after the balance sheet date.

121. Paragraph 120A(b) requires a general description of the type of plan. Such a description distinguishes, for example, flat salary pension plans from final salary pension plans and from post-employment medical plans. The description of the plan shall include informal practices that give rise to constructive obligations included in the measurement of the defined benefit obligation in accordance with paragraph 52. Further detail is not required.

Effective Date

Paragraphs 159B and 159C are added and paragraph 160 is amended, as follows.
--

159B. An entity shall apply the amendments in paragraphs 32A, 34-34B, 61 and 120-121 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006. Earlier application is encouraged. If an entity applies these amendments for a period beginning before 1 January 2006, it shall disclose that fact.

159C. The option in paragraphs 93A-93D may be used for annual periods ending on or after 16 December 2004. An entity using the option for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2006 shall also apply the amendments in paragraphs 32A, 34-34B, 61 and 120-121.

160. SB-FRS 8 applies when an entity changes its accounting policies to reflect the changes specified in paragraphs 159 and ~~159A-159C~~. In applying those changes retrospectively, as required by SB-FRS 8, the entity treats those changes as if they had been applied at the same time as the rest of this Standard, except that an entity may disclose the amounts required by paragraph 120A(p) as the amounts are determined for each annual period prospectively from the first annual period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments in paragraph 120A.

Other Amendments to the Standard

As a consequence of the amendments above, the following cross-references are amended.

In paragraph 29(b), ***'paragraph 120'*** is amended to ***'paragraph 120A'***.

In paragraph 60, 'Paragraph 120(c)(vi)' is amended to 'Paragraph 120A(f)(iii)'.

In the example illustrating paragraph 60, *'paragraph 120(c)(vi)'* is amended to *'paragraph 120A(f)(iii)'*.

In paragraph 104C, 'paragraph 120(c)(vii)' is amended to 'paragraph 120A(f)(iv)'.

In paragraph 159(b),

'paragraphs 120(c)(vii), (f)(iv), (g) and (h)(iii)'
is amended to
'paragraphs 120A(f)(iv), (g)(iv), (m) and (n)(iii)'.

The following section of Appendix A is amended as follows.

Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet and Income Statement Profit or Loss, and Related Analyses

The final step is to determine the amounts to be recognised in the balance sheet and ~~income statement~~ profit or loss, and the related analyses to be disclosed ~~under~~ in accordance with paragraph 120A(~~e~~), (~~e~~), (f) and (g) and (l) of the Standard (~~the analyses required to be disclosed in accordance with paragraph 120A(c) and (e) are given in the section of this Appendix 'Changes in the Present Value of the Obligation and in the Fair Value of the Plan Assets'~~).

These are as follows.

	20X1	20X2	20X3
Present value of the obligation	1,141	1,197	1,295
Fair value of plan assets	(1,092)	(1,109)	(1,093)
	49	88	202
Unrecognised actuarial gains (losses)	107	170	73
Unrecognised past service cost—non-vested benefits	-	(20)	(10)
Liability recognised in balance sheet	156	238	265
Current service cost	130	140	150
Interest cost	100	103	96
Expected return on plan assets	(120)	(121)	(114)
Net actuarial (gain) loss recognised in year	(4)	-	(5)
Past service cost—non-vested benefits	-	10	10
Past service cost—vested benefits	-	50	-
Expense recognised in the income statement profit or loss	106	182	137
Movements in the net liability recognised in the balance sheet, to be disclosed under paragraph 120(e):			
Opening net liability	140	156	238
Expense as above	106	182	137
Contributions paid	(90)	(100)	(110)
Closing net liability	156	238	265
Actual return on plan assets, to be disclosed under paragraph 120(g)			
Expected return on plan assets	120	121	114
Actuarial gain (loss) on plan assets	32	(24)	(50)
Actual return on plan assets	152	97	64

Note: see example illustrating paragraphs 104A-104C for presentation of reimbursements.

The following sections of Appendix B are amended as follows.

Illustrative Disclosures

~~The~~This appendix accompanies, but is not part of, SB-FRS 19. Extracts from notes show how the required disclosures may be aggregated in the case of a large multi-national group that provides a variety of employee benefits. These extracts do not necessarily conform with all the disclosure and presentation requirements of SB-FRS 19 and other Standards. In particular, they do not illustrate the disclosure of:

- (a) ~~accounting policies for employee benefits (see SB-FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements). Under p~~Paragraph 120A(a) of the Standard, requires this disclosure to shall include the entity's accounting policy for recognising actuarial gains and losses.
- ~~(b) a general description of the type of plan (paragraph 120A(b)).~~
- ~~(c) a narrative description of the basis used to determine the overall expected rate of return on assets (paragraph 120A(l)).~~
- ~~(d)~~ employee benefits granted to directors and key management personnel (see SB-FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures).
- ~~(e) share-based employee benefits (see SB-FRS 102 Share-based Payment).~~

Employee Benefit Obligations

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

	Defined benefit pension plans		Post-employment medical benefits	
	20X2	20X1	20X2	20X1
Present value of funded obligations	<u>20,300</u>	<u>17,400</u>	-	-
Fair value of plan assets	<u>18,420</u>	<u>17,280</u>	-	-
	<u>1,880</u>	<u>120</u>	-	-
Present value of unfunded obligations	<u>2,000</u>	<u>1,000</u>	<u>7,337</u>	<u>6,405</u>
Unrecognised actuarial gains (losses)	<u>(1,605)</u>	<u>840</u>	<u>(2,707)</u>	<u>(2,607)</u>
Unrecognised past service cost	<u>(450)</u>	<u>(650)</u>	-	-
Net liability in balance sheet	<u>1,825</u>	<u>1,310</u>	<u>4,630</u>	<u>3,798</u>

Amounts in the balance sheet:

liabilities	<u>1,825</u>	<u>1,400</u>	<u>4,630</u>	<u>3,798</u>
assets	-	(90)	-	-
Net liability in balance sheet	<u>1,825</u>	<u>1,310</u>	<u>4,630</u>	<u>3,798</u>

The pension plan assets include ordinary shares issued by [name of reporting entity] with a fair value of 317 (20X1: 281). Plan assets also include property occupied by [name of reporting entity] with a fair value of 200 (20X1: 185).

The amounts recognised in the ~~income statement~~ profit or loss are as follows:

	Defined benefit pension plans		Post-employment medical benefits	
	20X2	20X1	20X2	20X1
Current service cost	<u>850</u>	<u>750</u>	<u>479</u>	<u>411</u>
Interest on obligation	<u>950</u>	<u>1000</u>	<u>803</u>	<u>705</u>
Expected return on plan assets	<u>(900)</u>	<u>(650)</u>	-	-
Net actuarial losses (gains) recognised in year	<u>(70)</u>	<u>(20)</u>	<u>150</u>	<u>140</u>
Past service cost	<u>200</u>	<u>200</u>	-	-
Losses (gains) on curtailments and settlements	<u>175</u>	<u>(390)</u>	-	-
Total, included in 'employee benefits expense'	<u>1,205</u>	<u>890</u>	<u>1,432</u>	<u>1,256</u>
Actual return on plan assets	<u>600</u>	<u>2,250</u>	-	-

Movements in the net liability recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

	Defined benefit pension plans		Post-employment medical benefits	
	20X2	20X1	20X2	20X1
Net liability at start of year	6,040	5,505	5,472	5,439
Net expense recognised in the income statement	2,688	1,982	999	850
Contributions	(2,261)	(1,988)	(941)	(817)
Exchange differences on foreign plan	(227)	221	-	-
Liabilities acquired in business combinations	-	320	-	-
Net liability at end of year	<u>6,240</u>	<u>6,040</u>	<u>5,530</u>	<u>5,472</u>

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

	<u>Defined benefit pension plans</u>		<u>Post-employment medical benefits</u>	
	<u>20X2</u>	<u>20X1</u>	<u>20X2</u>	<u>20X1</u>
<u>Opening defined benefit obligation</u>	<u>18,400</u>	<u>11,600</u>	<u>6,405</u>	<u>5,439</u>
<u>Service cost</u>	<u>850</u>	<u>750</u>	<u>479</u>	<u>411</u>
<u>Interest cost</u>	<u>950</u>	<u>1,000</u>	<u>803</u>	<u>705</u>
<u>Actuarial losses (gains)</u>	<u>2,350</u>	<u>950</u>	<u>250</u>	<u>400</u>
<u>Losses (gains) on curtailments</u>	<u>500)</u>	<u>-</u>		
<u>Liabilities extinguished on settlements</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>(350)</u>		
<u>Liabilities assumed in a business combination</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>5,000</u>		
<u>Exchange differences on foreign plans</u>	<u>900</u>	<u>(150)</u>		
<u>Benefits paid</u>	<u>(650)</u>	<u>(400)</u>	<u>(600)</u>	<u>(550)</u>
<u>Closing defined benefit obligation</u>	<u>22,300</u>	<u>18,400</u>	<u>7,337</u>	<u>6,405</u>

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

	<u>Defined benefit pension plans</u>	
	<u>20X2</u>	<u>20X1</u>
<u>Opening fair value of plan assets</u>	<u>17,280</u>	<u>9,200</u>
<u>Expected return</u>	<u>900</u>	<u>650</u>
<u>Actuarial gains and (losses)</u>	<u>(300)</u>	<u>1,600</u>
<u>Assets distributed on settlements</u>	<u>(400)</u>	<u>-</u>
<u>Contributions by employer</u>	<u>700</u>	<u>350</u>
<u>Assets acquired in a business combination</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>6,000</u>
<u>Exchange differences on foreign plans</u>	<u>890</u>	<u>(120)</u>
<u>Benefits paid</u>	<u>(650)</u>	<u>(400)</u>
	<u>18,420</u>	<u>17,280</u>

The group expects to contribute 900 to its defined benefit pension plans in 20X3.

<u>The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:</u>	<u>20X2</u>	<u>20X1</u>
<u>European equities</u>	<u>30%</u>	<u>35%</u>
<u>North American equities</u>	<u>16%</u>	<u>15%</u>
<u>European bonds</u>	<u>31%</u>	<u>28%</u>
<u>North American bonds</u>	<u>18%</u>	<u>17%</u>
<u>Property</u>	<u>5%</u>	<u>5%</u>

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

	<u>20X2</u>	<u>20X1</u>
<u>Discount rate at 31 December</u>	<u>5.0%</u>	<u>6.5%</u>
<u>Expected return on plan assets at 31 December</u>	<u>5.4%</u>	<u>7.0%</u>
<u>Future salary increases</u>	<u>5%</u>	<u>4%</u>
<u>Future pension increases</u>	<u>3%</u>	<u>2%</u>
<u>Proportion of employees opting for early retirement</u>	<u>30%</u>	<u>30%</u>
<u>Annual increase in healthcare costs</u>	<u>8%</u>	<u>8%</u>
<u>Future changes in maximum state healthcare benefits</u>	<u>3%</u>	<u>2%</u>

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in profit or loss. A one percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following effects:

	<u>One percentage point increase</u>	<u>One percentage point increase</u>
<u>Effect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost</u>	<u>190</u>	<u>(150)</u>
<u>Effect on defined benefit obligation</u>	<u>1,000</u>	<u>(900)</u>

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

	<u>20X2</u>	<u>20X1</u>	<u>20X0</u>	<u>20W9</u>	<u>20W8</u>
<u>Defined benefit obligation</u>	<u>(22,300)</u>	<u>(18,400)</u>	<u>(11,600)</u>	<u>(10,582)</u>	<u>(9,144)</u>
<u>Plan assets</u>	<u>18,420</u>	<u>17,280</u>	<u>9,200</u>	<u>8,502</u>	<u>10,000</u>
<u>Surplus/(deficit)</u>	<u>(3,880)</u>	<u>(1,120)</u>	<u>(2,400)</u>	<u>(2,080)</u>	<u>856</u>
<u>Experience adjustments on plan liabilities</u>	<u>(1,111)</u>	<u>(768)</u>	<u>(69)</u>	<u>543</u>	<u>(642)</u>
<u>Experience adjustments on plan assets</u>	<u>(300)</u>	<u>1,600</u>	<u>(1,078)</u>	<u>(2,890)</u>	<u>2,777</u>

Post-employment medical benefits

	<u>20X2</u>	<u>20X1</u>	<u>20X0</u>	<u>20W9</u>	<u>20W8</u>
<u>Defined benefit obligation</u>	<u>7,337</u>	<u>6,405</u>	<u>5,439</u>	<u>4,923</u>	<u>4,221</u>
<u>Experience adjustments on plan liabilities</u>	<u>(232)</u>	<u>829</u>	<u>490</u>	<u>(174)</u>	<u>(103)</u>

The group also participates in an industry-wide defined benefit plan ~~which~~that provides pensions linked to final salaries and is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. It is not practicable to determine the present value of the group's obligation or the related current service cost as the plan computes its obligations on a basis that differs materially from the basis used in [name of reporting entity]'s financial statements. [describe basis] On that basis, the plan's financial statements to 30 June 20X0 show an unfunded liability of 27,525. The unfunded liability will result in future payments by participating employers. The plan has approximately 75,000 members, of whom approximately 5,000 are current or former employees of [name of reporting entity] or their dependants. The expense recognised in the income statement, which is equal to contributions due for the year, and is not included in the above amounts, was 230 (20X1: 215). The group's future contributions may be increased substantially if other entities withdraw from the plan.

Appendix F: Amendments to other Standards

The amendments in this appendix shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006. If an entity applies the amendments to SB-FRS 19 for an earlier period, these amendments shall be applied for that earlier period.

- A1. SB-FRS 1 *Presentation of Financial Statements* (as revised in 2004) is amended as described below.

Paragraph 96 is amended to read as follows:

96. An entity shall present a statement of changes in equity showing on the face of the statement:

(a) ...

(d) ...

A statement of changes in equity that comprises only these items shall be titled a statement of recognised income and expense.

In the Implementation Guidance, the following line is added to the illustrative statement of recognised income and expense after the line 'Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations':

Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit plans	X	(X)
---	---	-----

- A2. In SB-FRS 24 *Related Party Disclosures* (as revised in 2004), paragraph 20 is amended to read as follows:

20. The following are examples of transactions that are disclosed if they are with a related party:

(a) ...

(i) ...

Participation by a parent or subsidiary in a defined benefit plan that shares risks between group entities is a transaction between related parties (see paragraph 34B of SB-FRS 19).

- A3. In SB-FRS 101 *First-time Adoption of Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards*, paragraph 20A is added as follows:

20A An entity may disclose the amounts required by paragraph 120A(p) as the amounts are determined for each accounting period prospectively from the transition date.